
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Date, Time: Friday, January 31, 2025 – Board Meeting – 9:00 a.m. 
Location: Radisson Hotel Seattle Airport 

San Juan Rooms 2&3 
18118 International Blvd 
Seattle, WA 98188 
or by Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Notices: Public Rules Hearing 

Chair Introductions 

PUBLIC RULE MAKING HEARING 

1. Public Rule-Making Hearing Outline ...................................................................................... 11-13 

2. Rules Under Consideration – CR-102 filing............................................................................ 14-16 
a. WAC 4-30-057 Restrictions on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired. (New rule). ................ 17-18 
b. WAC 4-30-058 Other authorized titles. ................................................................................ 19 

3. Written Stakeholder Comments

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

4. Rules Review
a. Board’s deliberation on proposed rules considered at the public rule-making hearing.

See listing above under Public Rule-Making Hearing – Item 2
b. Semi-annual Rules Development Agenda – January through June 2025 ....................... 20-21 
c. Rules Under Initial Review (CR-101 Filing) ........................................................................ 22 

i. WAC 4-30-090 Practice privileges. ....................................................................... 23-26 

5. Washington State Executive Ethics Board – Board Member Training

6. Minutes – October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting............................................................... 27-40 

7. Delegations of Authority – Annual Review
a. DA-001, Investigations, Subpoenas, Charges, Emergency Action, and Settlement

Negotiations ................................................................................................................. 41-42 
b. DA-002, Request Oversight and Appeal of Denials ....................................................... 43-44 
c. DA-003, Quality Assurance Oversight ........................................................................... 45-46 
d. DA-004, CR-101 Filing  ....................................................................................................... 47 

8. Chair’s Report

January 31, 2025  Page 1



Washington State Board of Accountancy 
Board Meeting Agenda – January 31, 2025 
Page 2 

9. NASBA Update
a. Upcoming Conference Dates ................................................................................................ 48 
b. AICPA/NASBA UAA Exposure Draft Update
c. Qualifications for Licensure ................................................................................................. 49 

10. Legal Counsel’s Report

11. Committee/Task Force Reports
a. Executive Committee – Tonia Campbell, CPA
b. Peer Review Oversight Committee (PROC) – Scott Newman, Public Member
c. Request Oversight Committee (ROC) – Brian Thomas, CPA.............................................. 50 
d. Scholarship Oversight Committee (SOC) – Cindy Kay, CPA ....................................... 51-66 
e. Board/AICPA Rules Committee (BARC) – Brooke Stegmeier, CPA
f. Licensing and Regulation Committee (LARC) – Kate Dixon, Public Member

12. Acting Director’s Report
a. Budget Status .................................................................................................................. 67-70 
b. Board Meeting Location Update..................................................................................... 71-72 
c. Accountability Audit Results Report .............................................................................. 73-79 

13. Enforcement Report
a. Quarterly Enforcement and Resolved Complaint Reports ............................................. 80-81 

14. Executive and/or Closed Sessions with Legal Counsel

15. Public Input - The public has an opportunity to address its concerns, and the Board has
an opportunity to ask questions of the public. Individual speakers will be provided 10
minutes each.

The Board of Accountancy schedules all public meetings at barrier free sites.  Persons who need special 
assistance, please contact the Board's Americans with Disabilities Act contact person: 

Kirsten Donovan, Board Clerk 
PO Box 9131, Olympia, WA   98507-9131 
Phone:  360-664-9191   Email:  kirsten.donovan@acb.wa.gov 

7-1-1 or 1-800-833-6388 (TTY) - 1-800-833-6385 (Telebraille)
(TTY and Telebraille service nationwide by Washington Relay www.washingtonrelay.com)

January 31, 2025  Page 2



WASHINGTON STATE  
BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 

BOARD MEETING – JANUARY 31, 2025 
SUMMARY 

Date and Time: Friday, January 31, 2025 - 9:00 a.m. 
Location: Radisson Hotel Seattle Airport 

San Juan Rooms 2&3 
18118 International Blvd 
Seattle, WA 98188 
or by Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Notices: Public Rules Hearing 

Chair’s Opening 
Announcements: 

The purpose of the Board meeting is for the Board to accomplish 
its business. After the Board completes its discussion of an agenda 
item, if appropriate, I will ask if anyone in the audience wishes to 
comment. As a reminder, individuals attending the meeting may 
participate only after recognition by the Chair. If you plan to 
address the Board on other matters during the public input section 
of the agenda, please sign the public input roster, or if attending by 
Teams meeting, advise me now in the Teams chat, and your name 
will be added to the public input roster. 

Chair 
Introductions: 

My name is Tonia Campbell, CPA; I am the Chair of the Board of 
Accountancy. (Have Board Members introduce themselves - both 
those in person and virtually - then staff, and then Lisa Petersen, 
AAG, Board Advisor). 

January 31, 2025 - 9:00 a.m. – PUBLIC RULE-MAKING HEARING 

Rules Hearing - The Board will hold its scheduled rules hearing to obtain public input on 
the proposed changes to Board rules.  

1. Public Rule-Making Hearing Outline – The script the Chair will use as a guide during
the hearing is at pages 11-13 of the meeting materials.

2. Rules Under Consideration

See pages 14-16 for the CR-102, Proposed Rule Making Notice.

January 31, 2025  Page 3



Board Meeting Summary – January 31, 2025 
 
 

 

WAC 4-30-057 Restrictions on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired. (New Rule) 
 
Pages 17-18 contain the draft language for the proposed new rule. 

 
The new rule is intended to:  

• Provide guidance on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired allowable and prohibited 
activities.  

• Provide guidance on restricted title use. 

The Acting Director will provide a summary of the proposed new rule. 
 
WAC 4-30-058 Other authorized titles. 
 
Page 19 contains the draft language for the proposed rule changes. 

 
The proposed changes:  

• Remove subsection (6) related to the use of the CPA-retired designation, as 
this information is included in the proposed new rule, WAC 4-30-057. 

The Acting Director will provide a summary of the proposed rule changes. 
 
 

3. Written Stakeholder Comments – None were received by the time the Board 
meeting packet was compiled and posted to the website. If any are received by the 
written comment deadline of January 29, 2025, they will be provided during the Rules 
Hearing. 

 
 

January 31, 2025 – BOARD MEETING 
 

The regular Board meeting is now back in session, and the time is ____. 
 
 

4. Rules Review 
 
a. Board deliberation on the proposed rule considered at the public rule-

making hearing. 
 

The Board Chair will introduce the rules under consideration. 
 

WAC 4-30-057 Restrictions on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired. 
 
The Acting Director is prepared to summarize the proposed new rule and answer 
any questions for the Board during deliberation. 
 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 4



Board Meeting Summary – January 31, 2025 
 
 

 

Does the Board wish to: 
 

• Adopt the rule as proposed; or 
• Adopt the rule with minor changes that do not change the general 

subject matter of the proposed rule; or 
• Amend the rule proposal and set another rules hearing date; or 
• Withdraw the rule proposal? 

 
Effective date: If the Board decides to adopt the rule, the Board must determine 
the effective date. Rules generally become effective 31 days after filing. The Acting 
Director recommends making the rule effective 31 days after filing. 
 

Does the Board wish to make the rule effective: 
 

• 31 days after filing; or 
• Another date? 

 
 

WAC 4-30-058 Other authorized titles. 
 
The Acting Director is prepared to summarize the proposed new rule and answer 
any questions for the Board during deliberation. 
 

Does the Board wish to: 
 

• Adopt the rule as proposed; or 
• Adopt the rule with minor changes that do not change the general 

subject matter of the proposed rule; or 
• Amend the rule proposal and set another rules hearing date; or 
• Withdraw the rule proposal? 

 
Effective date: If the Board decides to adopt the rule, the Board must determine 
the effective date. Rules generally become effective 31 days after filing. The Acting 
Director recommends making the rule effective 31 days after filing. 
 

Does the Board wish to make the rule effective: 
 

• 31 days after filing; or 
• Another date? 

 
b. Semi-annual Rules Development Agenda – January through June 2025 

 
Pages 20-21 contain the Semi-Annual Rules development agenda filed with the 
Office of the Code Reviser. 
 
The agenda is informational for the public, and the noted dates of anticipated 
activity are estimates. 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 5



Board Meeting Summary – January 31, 2025 
 
 

 

c. Rules Under Initial Review 
 

i. WAC 4-30-090 Practice privileges. 
 

Page 22 contains the CR-101 filing for WAC 4-30-090. 
 

Pages 23-26 contain a draft copy of the proposed rule changes.  
 

The proposed changes are intended to: 
  

• Update and clarify out-of-state individuals qualifying for practice 
privileges in our state. 

 
The Acting Director will lead a discussion on the proposed new rule. 

 
Does the Board wish to direct staff to: 

 
• File the CR-102 as written (or with minor changes) for this 

proposal and schedule a public rule making hearing in 
conjunction with the Board’s April meeting; or 

• Amend the rule proposal for consideration at the Board’s April 
meeting; or  

• Withdraw the rule proposal? 
 

 
5. Washington State Executive Ethics Board – Board Member Training 

 
Training is scheduled to begin at 10:00 a.m., so flexibility within the agenda is needed 
to accommodate the start time. 
 
The Acting Director will provide an introduction.    
 
Kate Reynolds, Executive Director, Washington State Executive Ethics Board, will 
conduct this training.  
 
 

6. Minutes – October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
Board staff presents October 18, 2024, Annual Board meeting minutes at Pages 
27-40 for the Board’s consideration. 

 
Does the Board approve the minutes as drafted? 
 
Do the Board Members attending virtually authorize the use of their 
electronic signatures on file for the signing of the approved meeting 
minutes? 
 

 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 6



Board Meeting Summary – January 31, 2025 
 
 

 

7. Delegations of Authority – Annual Review 
 

The Executive Committee and Board staff reviewed the delegations for possible 
revisions. Pages 41-47 contain the proposed revisions for the 2025 delegations for full 
Board review. Delegations are updated for the date and signature of the Board Chair. 
Any additional proposed revisions are outlined below.  
 
a. DA-001, Investigations, Subpoenas, Charges, Emergency Action, and 

Settlement Negotiations – Pages 41-42 
 

The recommended revisions: 
 

• Removes “CPA-inactive certificate holder” throughout, as that credential has 
been retired. 

• Reword section (g) to reflect previous changes to referenced Board Policy 
2004-1.   

 
Does the Board wish to revise, retain, or revoke this delegation? 

 
b. DA-002, Request Oversight and Appeal of Denials – Pages 43-44 

 
The recommended revision:  
 

• Removes “CPA-inactive certificate holder”, as that credential has been 
retired.   

 
Does the Board wish to revise, retain, or revoke this delegation? 

 
c. DA-003, Quality Assurance Oversight – Pages 45-46 

 
The Executive Committee and the Acting Director recommend retiring the 
delegation, as Board Policy 2020-1, Peer Review, outlines the peer review process 
and the delegation is no longer needed.   

 
Does the Board wish to revise, retain, or revoke this delegation? 

 
d. DA-004, CR-101 Filing – Page 47 

 
No revisions are recommended.   

 
Does the Board wish to revise, retain, or revoke this delegation? 

 
 

8. Chair’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 7



Board Meeting Summary – January 31, 2025 
 
 

 

9. NASBA Update 
 
a. Upcoming Conference Dates 

 
Page 48 contains the 2025 NASBA Meeting Calendar.  

 
b. AICPA/NASBA UAA Exposure Draft Update 

 
c. Qualifications for Licensure 

 
Page 49 contains the Qualifications for Licensure report. 
 

 
10. Legal Counsel’s Report 

 
The Board's legal counsel requests the agenda for regular Board meetings contain a 
placeholder item for legal counsel to report on any current issues related to the 
Board's activities and/or Washington State law such as: the Administrative Procedures 
Act, Open Public Meetings Act, public disclosure requirements, etc.  

 
 

11. Committee/Task Force Reports 
 

a. Executive – Chair: Tonia L. Campbell, CPA; Vice Chair: Thomas P. Sawatzki, 
CPA; Secretary: Brooke Stegmeier, CPA  

 
Tonia will give a verbal report. 

 
b. Peer Review Oversight Committee (PROC) – Chair: Scott S. Newman, Public 

Member; Members: Kate Dixon, Public Member; Tom Sawatzki, CPA; Non-Board 
Member Volunteers: Robert Loe, CPA; Laura Lindall, CPA; Tom Neill, CPA 

 
Scott will give a verbal report. 

 
c. Request Oversight Committee (ROC) – Chair: Brian R. Thomas, CPA; Members: 

Thomas P Sawatzki, CPA; Cindy Kay, CPA 
 

Page 50 contains the 4th quarter 2024 ROC report.  
 
Brian will give a verbal report. 

 
d. Scholarship Oversight Committee (SOC) – Chair: Cindy Kay, CPA; Members: 

Kate Dixon, Public Member; Thomas P. Sawatzki, CPA 
 

Pages 51-52 contain the Accounting of Receipts and Disbursements – Washington 
State Certified Public Accounting Scholarship Program for the Program Year 
Ending September 30, 2024, report and the listing of scholarship recipients. 
 
Pages 53-66 contain the Washington CPA Foundation Portfolio Management 
Program – September 2024, investment report. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 8



Board Meeting Summary – January 31, 2025 
 
 

 

 
 Cindy will give a verbal report.  
 
e. Board/AICPA Rules Committee (BARC) – Chair: Brooke Stegmeier, CPA; 

Members: Brian Thomas, CPA; Scott Newman, Public Member 
 

 Brooke will give a verbal report.  
 
f. Licensing and Regulation Committee (LARC) – Chair: Kate Dixon, Public 

Member; Members; Brian R. Thomas, CPA; Brooke Stegmeier, CPA; Non-Board 
Member Volunteers: Tom Neill, CPA; Kimberly Scott, Mike Nelson 

 
Kate will give a verbal report. 

 
 

12. Acting Director’s Report 
 

a. Budget Status 
 
Pages 67-70 contain the December 2024 Financial Reports summary, Allotment 
Expenditure/Revenue BTD Flexible Report, the Certified Public Accountant’s 
Account Fund Balance, and the CPA Scholarship Transfer Account Fund Balance 
for transactions through December 31, 2024. 
 

b. Board Meeting Location Update 
 
Pages 71-72 contain the revised 2025 Board meeting schedule filed with the Office 
of the Code Reviser. 

 
c. Accountability Audit Results Report 

 
Pages 73-79 contain the Office of the Washington State Auditor’s Accountability 
Audit Report State Board of Accountancy for the period July 1, 2020, through June 
30, 2024. 

 
 
13. Enforcement Report 

 
Taylor Shahon, CPA, Lead Investigator, will provide a verbal report on investigations. 
 
 
a. Quarterly Enforcement and Resolved Complaint Reports  
 
 Pages 80-81 contain the January 2025 Enforcement Reports. 
 

• Quarterly Report – October 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024 
• Twelve-Month Lookback – January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024 
• All Complaints – Resolved with and without discipline for periods January 2024 

to December 2024 and January 2023 to December 2023 
 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 9



Board Meeting Summary – January 31, 2025 
 
 

 

• CBM Report – October 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024 
 

 
14. Executive and/or Closed Session with Legal Counsel   
 

The Board's legal counsel requests the agenda for regular Board meetings contain a 
placeholder item identifying that the Board and legal counsel may enter into executive 
or closed session when determined appropriate. 
 

 
15. Public Input  
 

Board meeting time has been set aside to ensure the public has an opportunity to 
address its concerns, and the Board has an opportunity to ask questions of the public.  
Individual speakers will be allotted 10 minutes each. 

 
 

Meeting Closing – Thank you all for your participation. The time is _____, and this 
quarterly Board meeting is now closed. 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 10



 
 

WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 
RULES HEARING OUTLINE 

January 31, 2025 
 
Presiding officer read or paraphrase BOLD type entries 
Italics are explanatory notes to presiding officer 
 
OPENING STATEMENT: 
 
 The Board of Accountancy rules hearing is now in session.  The date is Friday, January 31, 

2025.  The time is ________.  My name is Tonia Campbell.  I am the Chair of the Board of 
Accountancy. 

 
 Copies of the rule proposals are available in the Board packet materials either at the back 

of the room or online at www.acb.wa.gov.   
 
 If you would like to testify, please sign in on the rule making public input roster at the back 

of the room. If you are attending by Teams meeting and would like to testify, let me know 
now in the Teams chat, and your name will be added to the roster. 

 
Explain hearing sequence and ground rules as follows: 
 
The hearing will be conducted as follows: 

 
1. I will identify the rules presented for testimony and a brief statement for each proposal 

will be presented. 
 

2. I will use the attendance roster to invite testimony on the proposal. When you give 
testimony, please: 

 
• State your name and organization if you speak for a group. 
• Limit your testimony to the rule proposal currently before the Board. 
• After you testify, please remain available for questions. 
• If you are testifying from text, please provide a copy by email to Kirsten Donovan, 

Board Clerk at kirsten.donovan@acb.wa.gov. 
 

Testimony is limited to 10 minutes for each speaker. 
 

3. When the testimony is complete the hearing will be closed. The Board will consider the 
proposed rule changes during the regular Board meeting immediately following the 
rules hearing. 

 
First Rule Proposal 
 
This rule proposal concerns: 
 

• WAC 4-30-057 Restrictions on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired. (New rule) 
 
The Acting Director will present a brief statement on the proposal.   

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 11



 Page 2 

  
 Jennifer presents the statement. 

 
 

The rule proposal has been identified.  We will now move on to the testimony.  
 
 
1. TESTIMONY FROM ATTENDANCE ROSTER 
 
Ask for testimony from the audience according to the order on the attendance roster.   
 
Will (name of individual) please present testimony? 
 
After the testimony is complete you will invite questions from the Board Members. 
 
2. OTHER TESTIMONY   
 
After all individuals listed on the attendance roster have testified, ask if others wish to testify.   
 
Is there anyone who wishes to testify who has not had the opportunity? 
 
3. WRITTEN STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
 
The Board did not receive any written comments for this rule proposal by the January 29, 2025, 
deadline date.  
 
Second Rule Proposal 
 
This rule proposal concerns: 
 

• WAC 4-30-058 Other authorized titles. 
 
The Acting Director will present a brief statement on the proposal.   
  

 Jennifer presents the statement. 
 
 

The rule proposal has been identified.  We will now move on to the testimony.  
 
 
1. TESTIMONY FROM ATTENDANCE ROSTER 
 
Ask for testimony from the audience according to the order on the attendance roster.   
 
Will (name of individual) please present testimony? 
 
After the testimony is complete you will invite questions from the Board Members. 
 
2. OTHER TESTIMONY   
 
After all individuals listed on the attendance roster have testified, ask if others wish to testify.  
  
  

 
January 31, 2025  Page 12



 Page 3 

Is there anyone who wishes to testify who has not had the opportunity? 
 

3. WRITTEN STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
 
The Board did not receive any written comments for this rule proposal by the January 29, 2025, 
deadline date.  
 
 
CLOSING STATEMENT: 
 
Thank you for your testimony.  (If any testimony was received.) 
 
The Board will deliberate on the oral and written testimony and the proposed rules later today 
during its regular Board meeting.  The Board’s decision regarding the proposed rules will be 
posted to the Board’s rule making section of the website and reflected in the meeting minutes.  
Thank you all for your participation.  The time is ______, and this hearing is now closed. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 13



Page 1 of 3 

 
PROPOSED RULE MAKING 

CODE REVISER USE ONLY 
 

 

CR-102 (June 2024) 
(Implements RCW 34.05.320) 

Do NOT use for expedited rule making 

Agency: Board of Accountancy 

☒ Original Notice 

☐ Supplemental Notice to WSR       

☐ Continuance of WSR       

☒ Preproposal Statement of Inquiry was filed as WSR  24-11-009  ; or 

☐ Expedited Rule Making--Proposed notice was filed as WSR      ; or 

☐ Proposal is exempt under RCW 34.05.310(4) or 34.05.330(1); or 

☐ Proposal is exempt under RCW      . 

Title of rule and other identifying information: (describe subject)   WAC 4-30-057 Limitations on CPA-inactive and CPA-
retired; WAC 4-30-058 Other authorized titles.   

Hearing location(s):   

Date: Time: Location: (be specific) Comment: 

January 31, 2025  9:00 a.m. Radisson Hotel Seattle Airport 
18118 International Boulevard 
San Juan Rooms 2 & 3 
Seattle, WA 98188 
 
or 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 
 

The link to join the meeting will be available on the 
Board’s website approximately 2 weeks before the 
hearing date at: https://acb.wa.gov/next-board-meeting.  
A phone number will be provided as well in case you 
are unable to attend online. 

 

Date of intended adoption: January 31, 2025          (Note: This is NOT the effective date) 

Submit written comments to: Assistance for persons with disabilities: 

Name   Kirsten Donovan, Rules Coordinator  Contact   Kirsten Donovan, Rules Coordinator  

Address   P.O. Box 9131, Olympia, WA 98507  Phone   360-664-9191  

Email  Kirsten.donovan@acb.wa.gov  Fax   360-664-9190  

Fax   360-664-9190  TTY   711  

Other        Email   Kirsten.donovan@acb.wa.gov  

Beginning (date and time)         Other        

By (date and time)   January 29, 2025  By (date)   January 29, 2025  

Purpose of the proposal and its anticipated effects, including any changes in existing rules:  The board of 
accountancy proposes adoption of new rule, WAC 4-30-057, to provide guidance on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired allowable 
and prohibited activities and restricted title use. 
The board of accountancy proposes amending WAC 4-30-058 to remove subsection (6) related to the use of the CPA-retired 
designation, as this information has been moved to WAC 4-30-057    

Reasons supporting proposal:   See purposes above  

Statutory authority for adoption:   RCW 18.04.055  

Statute being implemented:   RCW 18.04.055  

Is rule necessary because of a: 

Federal Law? ☐  Yes ☒  No 

Federal Court Decision? ☐  Yes ☒  No 

State Court Decision? ☐  Yes ☒  No 

If yes, CITATION:       

Agency comments or recommendations, if any, as to statutory language, implementation, enforcement, and fiscal 
matters:       

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 14



Page 2 of 3 

Name of proponent: (person or organization)    Board of Accountancy    

Type of proponent:  ☐ Private.  ☐ Public.  ☒ Governmental. 

Name of agency personnel responsible for: 

Name Office Location Phone 

Drafting     Jennifer Sciba, Acting Director  
 711 Capitol Way S Suite 400 
 Olympia, WA 98501   

 (360) 586-0952  

Implementation   Jennifer Sciba, Acting Director  
 711 Capitol Way S Suite 400 
 Olympia, WA 98501   

 (360) 586-0952  

Enforcement    Jennifer Sciba, Acting Director  
 711 Capitol Way S Suite 400 
 Olympia, WA 98501   

 (360) 586-0952      

Is a school district fiscal impact statement required under RCW 28A.305.135? ☐  Yes ☒  No 

If yes, insert statement here: 
      

The public may obtain a copy of the school district fiscal impact statement by contacting: 

Name        

Address       

Phone        

Fax        

TTY        

Email        

Other        

Is a cost-benefit analysis required under RCW 34.05.328? 

☐  Yes: A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting: 

Name        

Address       

Phone        

Fax        

TTY        

Email        

Other        

☒  No:  Please explain:  The Board of Accountancy is not a listed agency in RCW 34.05.328(5)(a)(i).      

Regulatory Fairness Act and Small Business Economic Impact Statement 
Note: The Governor's Office for Regulatory Innovation and Assistance (ORIA) provides support in completing this part. 

(1) Identification of exemptions: 
This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, may be exempt from requirements of the Regulatory Fairness Act (see 
chapter 19.85 RCW). For additional information on exemptions, consult the exemption guide published by ORIA. Please 
check the box for any applicable exemption(s): 

☐  This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW 19.85.061 because this rule making is being 

adopted solely to conform and/or comply with federal statute or regulations. Please cite the specific federal statute or 
regulation this rule is being adopted to conform or comply with, and describe the consequences to the state if the rule is not 
adopted. 
Citation and description:       

☐  This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt because the agency has completed the pilot rule process 

defined by RCW 34.05.313 before filing the notice of this proposed rule. 

☐  This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under the provisions of RCW 15.65.570(2) because it was 

adopted by a referendum. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 15

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.305.135
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.328
https://www.oria.wa.gov/site/alias__oria/934/Regulatory-Fairness-Act-Support.aspx
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=19.85&full=true
https://www.oria.wa.gov/Portals/_oria/VersionedDocuments/RFA/Regulatory_Fairness_Act/RFA-Exemptions.docx
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=19.85.061
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.313
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=15.65.570


Page 3 of 3 

☐  This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW 19.85.025(3). Check all that apply: 

☐ RCW 34.05.310 (4)(b) ☐ RCW 34.05.310 (4)(e) 

 (Internal government operations)  (Dictated by statute) 

☐ RCW 34.05.310 (4)(c) ☐ RCW 34.05.310 (4)(f) 

 (Incorporation by reference)  (Set or adjust fees) 

☐ RCW 34.05.310 (4)(d) ☐ RCW 34.05.310 (4)(g) 

 (Correct or clarify language)  ((i) Relating to agency hearings; or (ii) process 

   requirements for applying to an agency for a license 
or permit) 

☒  This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW 19.85.025(4). (Does not affect small businesses). 

☐  This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW       . 

Explanation of how the above exemption(s) applies to the proposed rule:        

(2) Scope of exemptions: Check one. 

☒  The rule proposal: Is fully exempt. (Skip section 3.) Exemptions identified above apply to all portions of the rule proposal. 

☐  The rule proposal: Is partially exempt. (Complete section 3.) The exemptions identified above apply to portions of the rule 

proposal, but less than the entire rule proposal. Provide details here (consider using this template from ORIA):         

☐  The rule proposal: Is not exempt. (Complete section 3.) No exemptions were identified above. 

(3) Small business economic impact statement: Complete this section if any portion is not exempt. 

If any portion of the proposed rule is not exempt, does it impose more-than-minor costs (as defined by RCW 19.85.020(2)) 
on businesses? 

☐  No  Briefly summarize the agency’s minor cost analysis and how the agency determined the proposed rule did not 

impose more-than-minor costs.          

☐  Yes Calculations show the rule proposal likely imposes more-than-minor cost to businesses and a small business 

economic impact statement is required. Insert the required small business economic impact statement here: 
      

 

The public may obtain a copy of the small business economic impact statement or the detailed cost calculations by 
contacting: 

Name        

Address        

Phone        

Fax        

TTY        

Email        

Other        

 
Date: October 22, 2024  
 

Name:  Jennifer Sciba      
 

Title:  Acting Director   

Signature:  

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 16

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=19.85.025
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.310
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.310
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.310
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.310
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.310
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=34.05.310
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=19.85.025
https://www.oria.wa.gov/RFA-Exemption-Table


NEW SECTION

WAC 4-30-057  Restrictions on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired.  (1) 
Introduction. Effective July 1, 2024, persons holding a license may 
renew their license in an inactive status. The purpose of this rule is 
to explain restrictions on the activities of persons while their li-
cense is in an inactive status, as well as persons who wish to use the 
title "CPA-retired."

(2) CPA-inactive restrictions. Persons holding an inactive li-
cense are prohibited from the practice of public accounting. RCW 
18.04.025(9). The "practice of public accounting" means performing or 
offering to perform by a person or firm holding itself out to the pub-
lic as a licensee, for a client or potential client, one or more kinds 
of services involving the use of accounting or auditing skills, in-
cluding the issuance of "reports," or one or more kinds of management 
advisory, or consulting services, or the preparation of tax returns, 
or the furnishing of advice on tax matters. RCW 18.04.025(17).

(3) CPA-inactive allowable activities. Persons holding an inac-
tive license may perform or offer to perform services in an employer-
employee relationship in industry, government, nonprofit, or educa-
tion, or uncompensated work such as a volunteer, trustee, director, or 
executor.

(4) CPA-inactive prohibited activities. Persons holding an inac-
tive license may not perform or offer to perform public accounting 
services:

(a) As an independent contractor in industry, government, non-
profit, or education;

(b) For compensation as a trustee, director, or executor;
(c) As a sole practitioner offering to perform services for a 

client or potential client; or
(d) As part of a CPA firm either offering to perform services for 

a client or potential client or working in purely an administrative 
role.

For the purpose of this section, "compensation" does not include 
reimbursement of actual expenses or a limited per diem allowance for 
expenses.

(5) CPA-inactive conversion to active status. At any time, per-
sons holding an inactive license may apply to convert their license 
status from inactive to active. See WAC 4-30-120.

(6) CPA-inactive professional conduct rules. Persons holding an 
inactive license are subject to the following rules for ethics and 
prohibited practices:

(a) Integrity and objectivity. See WAC 4-30-040;
(b) General standards. See WAC 4-30-046;
(c) Compliance with standards. See WAC 4-30-048;
(d) Accounting principles. See WAC 4-30-049;
(e) Acts discreditable. See WAC 4-30-052;
(f) Form of organization and name. See WAC 4-30-056;
(g) Other authorized titles. See WAC 4-30-058.
(7) CPA-inactive continuing professional education (CPE). Persons 

holding an inactive license have limited CPE requirements for renewal. 
See WAC 4-30-134. However, persons holding an inactive license are 
still required to maintain professional competence in all their allow-
able roles regardless of limited CPE requirements for renewal.

(8) CPA-inactive restricted title use. Persons holding an inac-
tive license may only use the title "CPA-inactive" and are prohibited 

[ 1 ] OTS-5947.1 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 17



from using the titles "certified public accountant" or "CPA." Persons 
holding an inactive license may not perform any of the activities in 
subsection (4) of this section regardless of whether or not they use 
the title "CPA-inactive."

(9) CPA-retired. Persons who have reached 60 years of age and 
hold a license in good standing in either an active or inactive sta-
tus, may apply to retire their license. When their license is in a re-
tired status, they may then use the title "CPA-retired."

(10) CPA-retired allowable activities. The title "CPA-retired" 
may be used when performing uncompensated services such as a volun-
teer, trustee, director, or executor.

(11) CPA-retired prohibited activities. Persons who have retired 
their license may not use the title "CPA-retired" to perform or offer 
to perform services:

(a) In an employer-employee relationship in industry, government, 
nonprofit, or education;

(b) As an independent contractor in industry, government, non-
profit, or education;

(c) For compensation as a trustee, director, or executor;
(d) As a sole practitioner offering to perform services for a 

client or potential client; or
(e) As part of a CPA firm either offering to perform services for 

a client or potential client or working in purely an administrative 
role.

For the purpose of this section, "compensation" does not include 
reimbursement of actual expenses or a limited per diem allowance for 
expenses.

(12) Renewal out of retirement. At any time, persons who have re-
tired their license may apply to renew as an active licensee. See WAC 
4-30-122.

(13) CPA-retired restricted title use. Persons who have retired 
their license are prohibited from using the titles "certified public 
accountant," "CPA," or "CPA-inactive." However, persons who have re-
tired their license may perform any of the activities in subsection 
(11) of this section without use of the title "CPA-retired."

(14) Lapsed licensees. Persons with a lapsed license are prohibi-
ted from using the titles "CPA-inactive," "CPA-retired," as well as 
the titles "certified public accountant," or "CPA."

[ 2 ] OTS-5947.1 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 18



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 23-04-088, filed 1/31/23, effective 
3/3/23)

WAC 4-30-058  Other authorized titles.  (1) The board allows the 
use of other titles by any person regardless of whether the person has 
been granted a certificate or holds a license if the person using the 
titles or designations is authorized at the time of use by a national-
ly recognized entity sanctioning the use of board authorized titles.

(2) Nothing in this chapter prohibits the use of the title "ac-
countant" by any person regardless of whether the person holds a li-
cense under this chapter.

(3) Nothing in this chapter prohibits the use of the title "en-
rolled agent" or the designation "EA" by any person regardless of 
whether the person holds a license under this chapter if the person is 
properly authorized at the time of use to use the title or designation 
by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).

(4) The board also authorizes titles and designations authorized 
by:

(a) The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(AICPA);

(b) The Association of International Certified Professional Ac-
countants (AICPA);

(c) The Institute of Management Accounts (IMA);
(d) The Accreditation Council for Accountancy and Taxation; and
(e) Certified Financial Planner Board of Standards (CFP Board).
(5) These authorized designations relate to title use only, are 

not limited to, individuals who have held or are holding a license un-
der the act, and do not authorize these other designated individuals 
to use the title "certified public accountant" or "CPA," or "CPA-inac-
tive."

(((6) The board further authorizes the use of the designation 
"CPA retired" in this state by those individuals who, upon notice to 
the board to retire a license, meet the following criteria:

(a) Has reached 60 years of age and holds an active license in 
good standing; or

(b) At any age, has held an active license in good standing, not 
suspended or revoked, to practice public accounting in any state for a 
combined period of not less than 20 years.))

[ 1 ] OTS-5948.1 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 19



 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Board of Accountancy 
PO BOX 9131 • Olympia WA 98507-9131 

(360) 753-2586 • www.acb.wa.gov 

 
 

 

December 2, 2025 

 

 

Semi-Annual Rules Development Agenda 

January 2025 through June 2025 

 

 

The Washington State Board of Accountancy’s semi-annual, rules development agenda follows for 

publication in the Washington State register under RCW 34.05.314. 

 

This agenda is for information purposes, and the noted dates of anticipated activity are estimates. 

Additional rule development activity not on the agenda may occur as conditions warrant. 

 

If you have questions about this rule development agenda, please contact: 

 

Jennifer Sciba, Acting Director 

PO Box 9131, Olympia, WA  98507-9131 

Phone: (360) 586-0952; Email: jennifer.sciba@acb.wa.gov 

 

 

WAC Citation Subject Matter Anticipated Activity Dates 

  
Preproposal 

(CR-101) 

Proposed (CR-

102) or Expedited 

(CR-105) 
Permanent 

(CR-103) 

WAC 4-30-057 Restrictions on CPA-

inactive and CPA-retired. 

 

May 2024 October 2024 February 

2025 

WAC 4-30-058 Other authorized titles. 

 

May 2024 October 2024 February 

2025 

WAC 4-30-060 Education requirements. 

 

April 2025 July 2025 October 2025 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 20

mailto:jennifer.sciba@acb.wa.gov


Semi-Annual Rules Development Agenda 

January 2025 through June 2025 

Page 2 

 

The Washington State Board of Accountancy is required to comply with the Public Records Act, Chapter 
42.56 RCW. The information you submit to the Board may be subject to disclosure as a public record. 

 

 

WAC 4-30-070 Experience requirements. 

 

April 2025 July 2025 October 2025 

WAC 4-30-072 What are the 

responsibilities of verifying 

CPA? 

 

April 2025 July 2025 October 2025 

WAC 4-30-080 Initial individual CPA 

license requirements. 

 

 

April 2025 July 2025 October 2025 

WAC 4-30-090 Practice privileges. 

 

October 2024 February 2025 April 2025 

WAC 4-30-092 How do I apply for a 

Washington state CPA 

license if I hold a valid 

CPA license in another 

state? 

 

April 2025 July 2025 

 

October 2025 

 

 
Jennifer Sciba 

Acting Director 

 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 21



Page 1 of 1 

 
PREPROPOSAL STATEMENT 

OF INQUIRY 

CODE REVISER USE ONLY 
 

 

CR-101 (October 2017) 
(Implements RCW 34.05.310) 

Do NOT use for expedited rule making 

Agency: Board of Accountancy 

Subject of possible rule making: WAC 4-30-090 Practice privileges. 
 

Statutes authorizing the agency to adopt rules on this subject: RCW 18.04.055 

Reasons why rules on this subject may be needed and what they might accomplish:  
The proposed rule changes are intended to update and clarify out-of-state individuals qualifying for practice privileges in our 
state.   

Identify other federal and state agencies that regulate this subject and the process coordinating the rule with these 
agencies: None 

Process for developing new rule (check all that apply): 

☐  Negotiated rule making 

☐  Pilot rule making 

☒ Agency study 

☐ Other (describe)       

Interested parties can participate in the decision to adopt the new rule and formulation of the proposed rule before 
publication by contacting: 

 (If necessary) 

Name: Kirsten Donovan, Rules Coordinator Name:       

Address: Washington State Board of Accountancy 
PO Box 9131 
Olympia, WA 98507-9131 

Address:       

Phone: 360-664-9191 Phone:       

Fax: 360-664-9190 Fax:       

TTY: 1-800-833-6388 TTY:       

Email: Kirsten.donovan@acb.wa.gov      Email:       

Web site: https://acb.wa.gov/ Web site:       

Other:       Other:       

Additional comments:       

Date:  October 21, 2024  
 

Name: Jennifer Sciba, 
 

Title:  Acting Director       

Signature: 
     

 
 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 22



WAC (11/06/2024 02:27 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

WAC 4-30-090  Practice privileges.  Out-of-state 

individuals holding valid licenses to practice public accounting 

issued by a substantially equivalent state, may hold out and 

practice within Washington state and/or provide public 

accounting services in person, by mail, telephone, or electronic 

means to clients residing in Washington state without notice or 

payment of a fee. An individual who qualifies for practice 

privileges under RCW 18.04.350 (1), and who performs any attest 

service described in RCW 18.04.025(1) may only do so through a 

firm that has obtained a license under RCW 18.04.195 and 

18.04.215 or that meets the requirements for an exception from 

the firm licensure requirements under RCW 18.04.195 

(1)(a)(ii)(A) through (D) or (b). 

As a condition of this privilege, the out-of-state 

individual is deemed to have consented to: 

(1) The personal and subject matter jurisdiction and 

disciplinary authority of this state's board;In general. 

“Practice privileges” are temporary rights granted to a person 

who: 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 23



WAC (11/06/2024 02:27 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 

(a) Holds a current license or certificate in good standing 

from any other state or jurisdiction of the United States, and 

(b) At the time of licensure, was required to show evidence 

of having obtained at least a minimum of a baccalaureate degree, 

passed the Uniform CPA Exam, and has at least one year of 

experience. 

(2) Comply with the Public Accountancy Act of this state, 

chapter 18.04 RCW, and this board's rules contained in Title 4 

WAC;Allowable services.  An individual who qualifies for 

practice privileges may offer or render professional services, 

whether in person or by mail, telephone, or electronic means. 

(3) The appointment of the state board which issued the 

certificate or license as their agent upon whom process may be 

served in any action or proceeding by this state's board against 

the certificate holder or licensee;No notice.  The board 

requires no notice, fee, or other submission be provided by any 

such individual exercising practice privileges in the state of 

Washington. 

(4) Not render any professional services in this state 

unless the out-of-state individual is licensed to render such 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 24



WAC (11/06/2024 02:27 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 

services in the state of licensure upon which the privilege is 

contingent;Consent. An individual who qualifies for practice 

privileges, as a condition of exercising such privilege, 

consents: 

(a) To the personal and subject matter jurisdiction and 

disciplinary authority of the board; 

(b) To comply with chapter 18.04 RCW and the board’s rules; 

(c) That in the event a license or certificate from any 

other state or jurisdiction of the United States is no longer 

valid, the individual will cease offering or rendering 

professional services in this state individually or on behalf of 

a firm; and  

(d) To the appointment of the state board which issued the 

certificate or license as their agent upon whom process may be 

served in any action or proceeding by this state’s board against 

the certificate holder or licensee. 

(5) Cease offering or performing professional services in 

this state, individually and/or on behalf of a firm, if the 

license from the state of the out-of-state individual's 

principal place of business is no longer valid; and 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 25



WAC (11/06/2024 02:27 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 

(6) Cease offering or performing specific professional 

services in this state, individually and/or on behalf of a firm, 

if the license from the state of the out-of-state individual's 

principal place of business is restricted from offering or 

performing such specific professional services. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 18.04.055. WSR 24-21-116, s 4-30-090, 

filed 10/21/24, effective 11/21/24; WSR 16-17-036, § 4-30-090, 

filed 8/9/16, effective 9/9/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 

18.04.350 (2), (3), (4), (5). WSR 11-07-070, § 4-30-090, filed 

3/22/11, effective 4/22/11; WSR 10-24-009, amended and 

recodified as § 4-30-090, filed 11/18/10, effective 12/19/10; 

WSR 08-18-016, § 4-25-747, filed 8/25/08, effective 9/25/08.] 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 26



WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 
 

Unapproved Draft - Minutes of a Meeting of the Board – Unapproved Draft 
 

 
Time and Place of 
Meeting  

 
9:00 a.m. – 2:09 p.m. Friday, October 18, 2024 
Capital Event Center 
6005 Tyee Drive SW 
Tumwater, WA 98512 
or by Microsoft Teams Meeting 
 

Attendance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Members 
Kate Dixon, Public Member, Chair 
Thomas P. Sawatzki, CPA, Vice Chair 
Brooke Stegmeier, CPA, Secretary  
Mark Hugh, CPA   
Rajib Doogar, Public Member 
Brian R. Thomas, CPA  
Scott S. Newman, Public Member (Arrived at 11:55 a.m.) 
Tonia L. Campbell, CPA 
Cindy Kay, CPA 
 
Staff and Advisors  
Jennifer Sciba, Acting Director 
Lisa Petersen, Assistant Attorney General, Board Advisor 
Taylor Shahon, CPA, Lead Investigator 
Kirsten Donovan, Board Clerk 
Tia Landry, Data and Systems Administrator 
 

Call to Order – 
Board Meeting  
 

Board Chair, Kate Dixon, CPA, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
Board Members, Board staff, and legal counsel introduced themselves. 
 
All Board staff attends the Board annual meeting in October each year. 
Staff not directly involved in the meeting introduced themselves. 
 

• Lori Mickelson – Chief Administration Officer 
• Kelly Wulfekuhle – Lead Solutions Analyst 
• Isaac Ross – Licensing Specialist 
• Tim Taylor – Customer Service Specialist 

 
The Acting Director spoke highly of the staff and thanked them for the 
great work they do. The Board Chair recognized staff as well. 
 

Public Rule-
Making Hearing  
 

The Board held a public rule-making hearing from 9:06 a.m. to 9:50 a.m.    
The Board Chair presided. The Board proposed adopting a new rule: 

 
• WAC 4-30-053 Client record requests. (New rule) 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 27



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 14 

The proposed new rule is intended to provide guidance to consumers 
regarding client records. 
  
Mark Hugh provided a summary of the proposed new rule. 
 
No written comments were received.  
 
Public input was received during the hearing from Tom Neill, stating that 
he appreciates the Board adding this rule, as it is imperative for the 
public. 
 

• Rules alignment for HB 1920 RCW Revisions, QAR Update, and 
Pronoun Update 
 

o WAC 4-30-010 Definitions.  
o WAC 4-30-024 Public records.  
o WAC 4-30-034 Responding to board inquiries.  
o WAC 4-30-040 Integrity and objectivity.  
o WAC 4-30-042 Independence. 
o WAC 4-30-044 Contingent fees. 
o WAC 4-30-045 Commission and referral fees. 
o WAC 4-30-046 General standards. 
o WAC 4-30-048 Compliance with standards.   
o WAC 4-30-049 Accounting principles.  
o WAC 4-30-050 Confidential client information.   
o WAC 4-30-052 Acts discreditable.  
o WAC 4-30-054 Advertising and other forms of solicitation.   
o WAC 4-30-056 Form of organization and name.  
o WAC 4-30-070 What are the experience requirements in 

order to obtain a CPA license?  
o WAC 4-30-090 Must an out-of-state individual holding a 

license from another state apply and obtain a Washington 
state license to hold out and practice in Washington state?  

o WAC 4-30-112 In state and out-of-state firm licensing 
requirements.  

o WAC 4-30-114 How do I apply for and maintain a firm 
license?  

o WAC 4-30-130 Quality assurance review (QAR) 
requirements for licensed CPA firms.  

o WAC 4-30-132 Qualifying continuing professional education 
(CPE) activities.  

o WAC 4-30-142 Disciplinary actions.  

The proposed revisions: 

• Align the rules with HB 1920 RCW revisions. On March 7, 
2024, Governor Inslee signed into law HB 1920, which is 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 28



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 14 

effective June 6, 2024. WAC 4-30-010, 4-30-034, 4-30-040, 4-
30-042, 4-30-044, 4-30-045, 4-30-046, 4-30-048, 4-30-049, 4-
30-050, 4-30-052, 4-30-054, 4-30-056, 4-30-070, 4-30-090, 4-
30-112, 4-30-114, 4-30-130, and 4-30-142. 

• Update the quality assurance review (QAR) requirements. 
WAC 4-30-130. 

• Update to gender neutral pronouns. WAC 4-30-024, 4-30-040, 
4-30-049, 4-30-132, and 4-30-142. 

• Rename the rule. WAC 4-30-070, 4-30-090, and 4-30-114.  

The Acting Director provided a summary of the proposed rule changes. 
 

Washington Peer 
Review 
Background 
 

Mark Hugh presented the PowerPoint, Washington Peer Review 
Background, covering WAC 4-30-130, Quality assurance review (QAR) 
requirements for licensed CPA firms. The information was provided to 
assist in the discussion during the Rules Review section of the Board 
meeting.   
   

Written 
Stakeholder 
Comments 
 

The Acting Director read the written stakeholder comments received 
during the written public input period. All comments concerned WAC 4-
30-130, Quality assurance review (QAR) requirements for licensed CPA 
firms. Comments were received from: 
 

• Andrew Johnson, CPA – Supports proposed rule changes. 
• Broom & Perry, CPA, PS – Supports of proposed rule changes. 
• Walt Schultz, CPA – Supports proposed rule changes. 
• Daniel Mortensen, CPA – Against proposed rule changes. 
• Brian Bircher, CPA – Supports proposed rule changes.  
• Eric Rasmussen, CPA – Against proposed rule changes.  
• Robert McKinley, CPA - Against proposed rule changes. 

  
No in-person public input was received during the rules hearing.  
 

Call to Order – 
Board Meeting 
 

The Board Chair called the annual Board meeting back to order at 9:50 
a.m. 

Rules Review 
 

Board Deliberation on Proposed Rules Considered at the Public Rule-
making Hearing 
 

• WAC  4-30-053 Client record requests. (New rule) 
 
The Board voted unanimously to adopt the rule as written. One Board 
Member was not present for the vote. 
 
The Board voted for an effective date of 31 days after filing. 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 29



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 4 of 14 

 
• Rules alignment for HB 1920 RCW Revisions, QAR Update, and 

Pronoun Update 
 

o WAC 4-30-010 Definitions.  
o WAC 4-30-024 Public records.  
o WAC 4-30-034 Responding to board inquiries.  
o WAC 4-30-040 Integrity and objectivity.  
o WAC 4-30-042 Independence. 
o WAC 4-30-044 Contingent fees. 
o WAC 4-30-045 Commission and referral fees. 
o WAC 4-30-046 General standards. 
o WAC 4-30-048 Compliance with standards.   
o WAC 4-30-049 Accounting principles.  
o WAC 4-30-050 Confidential client information.   
o WAC 4-30-052 Acts discreditable.  
o WAC 4-30-054 Advertising and other forms of solicitation.   
o WAC 4-30-056 Form of organization and name.  
o WAC 4-30-070 What are the experience requirements in 

order to obtain a CPA license?  
o WAC 4-30-090 Must an out-of-state individual holding a 

license from another state apply and obtain a Washington 
state license to hold out and practice in Washington state?  

o WAC 4-30-112 In state and out-of-state firm licensing 
requirements.  

o WAC 4-30-114 How do I apply for and maintain a firm 
license?  

o WAC 4-30-130 Quality assurance review (QAR) 
requirements for licensed CPA firms.  

o WAC 4-30-132 Qualifying continuing professional education 
(CPE) activities.  

o WAC 4-30-142 Disciplinary actions.  

Board Member and the Peer Review Oversight Committee (PROC) 
member discussion focused on WAC 4-30-130.  

Tom Sawatzki’s points included: 

• Attendance at the AICPA Peer Review Committee Conference 
resulted in the following takeaways. 

o On the fence regarding making the rule change to eliminate 
compilations from peer review. 

o Informal poll taken at the conference with split results for 
and against eliminating compilations from peer review. 

o The AICPA says peer review is collaborative, but others 
say it is not. 

• Requested PROC members to weigh in with their thoughts. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 30



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 5 of 14 

Laura Lindal’s (CPA, Non-board volunteer PROC member) points 
included: 

• Agrees with the proposed rule changes.  
• Written stakeholder comments read during the rules hearing in 

opposition to the rule change primarily regarded financial 
statement preparation which already does not require peer review. 

• AICPA members performing compilation services will still have to 
undergo peer review per their AICPA membership obligation. 

• Peer review used to be about education and improving quality. 
The education process is no longer the model. Now the model is 
punitive with inconsistent enforcement.  

Tom Neill’s (CPA, Non-board volunteer PROC member) points included: 

• Those affected by the proposed rule change will be a small pool 
due to AICPA membership requirements and those performing 
compilations are generally doing audit and attest work also.  

• Board Rules have safeguards built in to ensure those only doing 
compilations are still performing quality work. 

• Agreed with Laura that peer review seems to be punitive now. 

Rajib Doogar’s points included: 

• Removing compilations from peer review may cause issues with 
quality. 

• Asked the question - are AICPA peer review standards too high? 
• Labor problem – not enough firms are doing peer review. 
• Low cost does not unsure quality – may result in a low-quality 

services market. 
• Uncompetitive market results. 

Brooke Stegmeier’s points included: 

• Peer review seems to be a punishment tool. 

Mark Hugh’s points included: 

• The AICPA Peer Review Committee Conference is tense. 
• The peer review process is controlled by the AICPA. 

After a lengthy discussion, the Board voted to adopt the rule as written 
with 7 yea votes and 1 nay vote. One Board Member was not present for 
the vote.  

The Board voted for an effective date of 31 days after filing. 
 
Rules Under Initial Review 
 

• WAC 4-30-057 Restrictions on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired. 
(New rule) 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 31



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 6 of 14 

 
Mark Hugh provided a summary of the proposed new rule, which is 
intended to provide guidance on CPA-inactive and CPA-retired allowable 
and prohibited activities and restricted title use. 
 

• WAC 4-30-058 Other authorized titles. 
 
Mark Hugh provided a summary of the proposed rule change which 
removes subsection (6) related to the use of the CPA-retired designation, 
as this information is included in the proposed changes to WAC 4-30-
057. 
 
The Board directed staff to file the CR-102 as written for the rule 
proposals and to schedule a public rule-making hearing in conjunction 
with the Board’s January meeting.  
 

Minutes – July 
19, 2024, Board 
Meeting 
 

The Board approved the July 19, 2024, Board meeting minutes as 
drafted.  
 
The Board Members attending virtually authorized the use of their 
electronic signatures for the signing of the meeting minutes. 

  
Washington State 
Executive Ethics 
Board – Board 
Member Training 
 

Kate Reynolds, Executive Director, Washington State Executive Ethics 
Board, was scheduled to conduct Ethics in Public Service training for the 
Board Members. The rules section of the Board meeting ran long causing 
a schedule conflict for Kate. This training is being rescheduled for the 
January 31, 2025, Board meeting.   
 

Budget Report Ian Shelley, Senior Financial Consultant, Department of Enterprise 
Services (DES), Small Agency Financial Services (SAFS), provided an 
update on the Board’s budget. 
 

• The agency is in good financial condition. 
• The biennium projection anticipates a $4.16 million fund balance 

for June 2025. 
• No fund balance sweeps are expected currently.  

 
The Board Members and Acting Director thanked Ian for his update.     

 
Chair’s Report 
 

 
Election of 2025 Officers – The Board Chair nominated the following 
slate of officers to serve in 2025: 
 

• Chair – Tonia Campbell, CPA Member 
• Vice Chair – Tom Sawatzki, CPA Member 
• Secretary – Brooke Stegmeier, CPA Member 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 32



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 7 of 14 

No other nominations were made. The Board cast a unanimous vote for 
the slate of officers nominated. 
 
The newly elected officers will assume their duties on January 1, 2025. 
 
2025 Board Meeting Schedule – The Board established the following 
schedule for the 2025 Board meetings: 
 

• January 31, 2025 – SeaTac    
• April 25, 2025 – SeaTac    
• July 18, 2025 – Spokane 
• October 17, 2025 – Tumwater  

 
The meetings will be held as hybrid meetings with the option of attending 
in person or virtually through Microsoft Teams. 
 
Committee Appointments for 2025  
 
The Board made the following committee appointments for 2025: 
 

• Peer Review Oversight Committee (PROC) 
Chair:  

Scott Newman, Public Member 
Members:  

Tom Sawatzki, CPA 
Kate Dixon, Public Member  

 Non-Board Volunteers: 
Robert Loe, CPA (will roll off in June 2025) 
Laura Lindal, CPA 
Tom Neill, CPA 

 
• Request Oversight Committee (ROC) 

Chair: 
Brian Thomas, CPA 

Members: 
Cindy Kay, CPA 
Tom Sawatzki, CPA 

 
• Scholarship Oversight Committee (SOC) 

Chair: 
Cindy Kay, CPA 

Members: 
Kate Dixon, Public Member 
Tom Sawatzki, CPA 
 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 33



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 8 of 14 

• Board/AICPA Rules Committee (BARC) 
Chair: 

Brooke Stegmeier, CPA 
Members: 

Brian Thomas, CPA 
Mark Hugh, CPA (will roll off in June 2025) 
Scott Newman, Public Member 

 
• Licensing and Regulation Committee (LARC) 

Chair: 
Kate Dixon, Public Member 

Members: 
Mark Hugh, CPA (will roll off in June 2025) 
Brooke Stegmeier, CPA 
Brian Thomas, CPA 
Non-board Volunteers: 
 Tom Neill, CPA 
 Kimberly Scott, President & CEO, WSCPA  
 Mike Nelson, Manager of Government Affairs, WSCPA 

 
Rajib Doogar and Mark Hugh offered to join as non-board 
volunteers after their Board service ends in June 2025. 

 
NASBA Update The Acting Director provided a report on NASBA activities: 

 
CPA Competency-Based Experience Pathway 
 
The Acting Director presented and led the discussion on the report, CPA 
Competency-Based Experience Pathway, jointly issued by the AICPA 
and NASBA on September 12, 2024. Comments are requested by 
December 6, 2024.  
 
The proposed pathway offers an alternative to the current pathway for 
licensure. The standing pathway would still be valid.  
 
The CPA competency-based experience pathway would require: 
 

• Education – a bachelor’s degree with the required accounting and 
business administration course credit totals. 

• Experience – 2 years 
o General experience totaling a minimum of 2,000 hours and 

12 months. 
o Competency-based experience totaling a minimum of 2,000 

hours and 12 months. 
• Exam – Completion/passage of the Uniform CPA Examination.  

 
The Board decided not to submit comments on the report to NASBA.  

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 34



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 9 of 14 

 
Uniform Accountancy Act Exposure Draft 
 
The Acting Director presented and led the discussion on the Uniform 
Accountancy Act Exposure Draft published jointly by the AICPA and 
NASBA on September 30, 2024. Comments must be received by 
December 30, 2024. Discussion items included: 
 

• Draft language may hinder mobility. 
• The more complex model may cause a greater pipeline issue than 

that which already exists. 
• Automatic mobility provisions are already addressed in some 

jurisdictions. 
• Substantial equivalency is at risk.  
• Concerns with the implementation/verification process of the 

competency-based pathway. 
o Bias and opinions can be present in evaluating experience. 
o Criteria can be subjective.  

• Decoupling of mobility and substantial equivalency. 
 
The Board decided not to submit comments on the exposure draft to 
NASBA.       

 
Washington 
Mobility 
Presentation 

Mark Hugh presented and led the discussion on the PowerPoint, 
Washington mobility. Discussion items included: 
 

• Many Boards are unable to make changes to mobility without 
legislation. Our Board can make the changes through Board rules.   

• Oregon and California are currently running legislation to create 
alternate pathways to licensure. 

• Mobility is not currently open in Washington. Board rule changes 
would be needed to open mobility up for other Board’s alternate 
pathways to licensure if the Board chooses to go this route. 

• “Guardrails” can be written into the Board rule if we change the 
rule to allow for automatic mobility. 

 
Martin Pittioni, Executive Director of the Oregon Board of Accountancy, 
advised that Oregon is moving forward with legislation to revise their 
licensing requirements despite the national conversation.  
 
The Board voted unanimously to file the CR-101 for WAC 4-30-090, 
Practice privileges. The BARC will discuss proposed revisions and report 
at the next Board meeting. 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 35



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 10 of 14 

Board Policy 
Review 

2004-1 Administrative Violations Guidelines 
 
The Acting Director presented the proposed draft of the policy to the 
Board for consideration. The proposed revisions:  
 

• Change the name of the policy. 
• Add a citations column which provides the RCW or WAC 

references for the violation committed. 
• Increase fine amounts for some administrative violations. 
• Change verbiage for clarity. 
• Change the time for which all terms of the settlement must be met 

from 90 days to 30 days.   
  
The Board voted unanimously to revise the policy as written. 
 

Legal Counsel 
Report 

Lisa Petersen, the Board’s legal counsel, had nothing to report. Lisa 
commented that it was wonderful to spend the day with the Board. 

Acting Director’s 
Report 
 

2024 CPE Audit Report 
 
The Acting Director presented and led the discussion on the 2024 CPE 
Audit Report. CPE audit results included: 
 

• Total individuals audited – 339 
o Completed/passed – 311 
o Applied CPE reciprocity – 16 
o Failed – CPE extension requested – 9 
o Failed – Renewal denied – 3  

 
Jennifer advised that all CPE extensions are audited also.  
 
The Washington State Board of Accountancy from the Inside 
 
The Acting Director and Mark Hugh advised that they presented the 
program, The Washington State Board of Accountancy from the Inside, 
on August 14, 2024, to over 300 members of the WSCPA.  
 
The program provided information on Board operations and recruited for 
Board Member and Executive Director positions. 

 
Accountability Audit Report 
 
The Acting Director reported that the State Auditor’s Office is currently 
conducting an accountability audit on the agency for fiscal years 2021-
2024. The hope is that the audit will be completed by the end of the year.  
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 36



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 11 of 14 

 
Executive 
Committee 

 
The Chair reported that the committee meets monthly to discuss Board 
meeting information and topics. Kate thanked Tom and Brooke for their 
help on the committee. She thanked all the Board Members for their 
commitment and help during her time as the Board Chair. 
   

Peer Review 
Oversight 
Committee 
(PROC) 
 

Mark Hugh presented the 2024 Quality Assurance Review (QAR) Results 
report. 
 
The report results included: 
 

• CPA firms with peer review results – 130 
o Pass – 111 
o Pass with deficiencies – 15 
o Fail – 4  

• Peer review extension requests – 43 
• Limited scope exemptions – 343 

 
Mark thanked Robert Loe, CPA, Laura Lindal, CPA, and Tom Sawatzki, 
CPA, for attending the AICPA Peer Review Committee Conference and 
committee meetings and serving as the Board’s subject matter experts 
(SMEs) on peer review.   
 

Request 
Oversight 
Committee (ROC) 

Scott Newman thanked Rajib and Tonia for their help, particularly with 
the marketing name discussions, and serving on the ROC with him.  
 
Scott presented the Request Oversight Committee report which included: 

 
Approved Firm Names:  
 
Forvis Mazars LLP 
StratIQ 
LBMC, PC 
Blantyre Business Services, PLLC 
United States X Advisors Washington CPAs P.S 
SUM16 
CBIZ CPAs P.C. 
Brava Certified Public Accountants 
 
Professional/Educational Organization – Recognition Requests  
 
During the third quarter of 2024, the Board did not receive any requests 
for recognition from an educational organization or professional 
association for purposes of obtaining list requests.  

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 37



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 12 of 14 

Scholarship 
Oversight 
Committee (SOC) 
 

Tonia Campbell thanked Tom and Kate for their help and serving on the 
SOC with her. 
 
Tonia presented and led the discussion on the WA State CPA 
Scholarship Program report from the committee’s August 23, 2024, 
meeting. The committee met to discuss recommendations to increase the 
number of scholarships awarded in support of the CPA pipeline. The 
Washington CPA Foundation recommends:  
 

• Increasing the annual scholarship budget by $50,000 to fund 10 
additional $5,000 scholarships to expand the reach and impact. 

• Lowering the minimum required GPA from 3.5 to 2.5 to allow more 
students to qualify.  

• Opening scholarships to part-time students in addition to full-time 
students to ensure greater accessibility. 

• Implementing a questionnaire to identify applicants from 
underrepresented groups.  

 
The committee discussed methods of measuring the impact of the 
proposed changes which could include: 
 

• Tracking scholarship recipients’ CPA Exam completion. 
• Analyzing Exam success and failure factors. 
• Conducting surveys to determine if past scholarship recipients are 

obtaining a CPA license. 
 
Tonia Campbell presented the Projected Fund Balance Washington 
State Certified Public Accounting Scholarship Program and the 
Estimated Expenses for Administering the WA Certified Public 
Accounting Scholarship Program reports for year ending September 30, 
2025. The report included: 
 

• Beginning Fund Balance (as of July 1, 2024) – $2,178,810. 
• Revenues – Passive Earnings from Investments (Assumes a 3% 

return) – $65,364. 
• Expenditures – WBOA Certified Public Accounting Scholarships –

$475,000. 
• Projected Fund Balance for the Year Ended 9/30/2025 –

$1,769,174. 
• WSCPA Annual Administration Fee Reimbursed by Washington 

State Board of Accountancy – $30,000. 
• Annual WSCPA Estimated Expense to Administer WA CPA 

Scholarship Program – $44,843.    
  

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 38



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 13 of 14 

Board/AICPA 
Rules Committee 
(BARC) 
 
 
 
Licensing and 
Regulation 
Committee 
(LARC) 
 

Brooke Stegmeier reported that BARC quarterly activities were all 
discussed earlier in the meeting.  
 
Brooke thanked Brian, Mark, and Scott for their time and service to the 
BARC this year. 
 
Rajib Doogar thanked the committee members, Tonia, Kate, and non-
board volunteers, Tom Neill, Kimberly Scott, and Mike Nelson.  
 
Rajib noted that currently he has nothing to report, but the LARC will be 
doing some heavy lifting with potential upcoming rule changes. 
 

Enforcement 
Report 
 

Taylor Shahon, CPA, Lead Investigator, presented the following reports: 
 

• Quarterly Report – July 1, 2024, through September 30, 2024. 
• Twelve-Month Lookback – October 1, 2023, through September 

30, 2024. 
• All Complaints – Resolved with and without discipline for periods 

October 2023 to September 2024 and October 2022 to September 
2023. 

• CBM Report – July 1, 2024, through September 30, 2024. 
 
Taylor reported on the following enforcement activities: 
 

• The case load is currently 11 complaints. 
• The quarter was relatively smooth and quiet. 
• The primary issue is non-response to clients and the Board. 
• The team is working with AAG Lagerberg on updating processes 

for a smooth transition to the new Executive Director when that 
time comes.  

 
The Acting Director thanked the Board Members for serving as 
consulting Board Members (CBMs) noting that timely responses from 
them and legal counsel enable staff to respond to complainants and 
respondents in a timely manner.   
 

Executive and/or 
Closed Session 
with  
Legal Counsel 
 
Public Input 
 

No executive or closed sessions were held.  
 
 
 
 
Tom Sawatzki provided a statement from Matt Medlin who had a 
schedule conflict and left the meeting before the public input section. 
Matt thanked the Acting Director and Board staff for their assistance with 
an issue he was having with the Hawaii Board. 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Board meeting adjourned at 2:09 p.m. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 39



Minutes, October 18, 2024, Annual Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 14 of 14 

 
  
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 40



 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegation of Authority 
 
Number:  DA-001 
 
Title:  Investigations, Subpoenas, Charges, Emergency Action, 

and Settlement Negotiations   
 

 
 I, Kate DixonTonia L. Campbell, CPA, Chair of the Washington State Board of 
Accountancy (“Board”), acting under authorization by a Board vote, delegate to the Executive 
Director of the Board the authority to: 
 

(a) Investigate alleged violations of chapter 18.04 RCW, chapter 4-30 WAC, or chapter 
34.05 RCW, to include issuing subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses 
and require the production of documents, administering oaths or affirmations to 
witnesses appearing before the Board, taking testimony, and requiring that 
documentary evidence be submitted. 

(b) Sign, issue, and withdraw Statements of Charges, which seek to suspend, revoke, 
reprimand, discipline, or impose a fine upon a certified public accountant licensee, a 
CPA-inactive certificate holder, a licensed CPA firm, a CPA Examination or license 
applicant, a nonlicensee firm owner, or an unlicensed individual or firm using the 
CPA title.   

(c) Sign, issue, and withdraw Statements of Intent to Deny, which refuse to issue, 
reinstate, or renew a certified public accountant license, a CPA-inactive certificate, 
a CPA firm license, or a nonlicensee firm owner registration. 

(d) Apply to the appropriate court for an order enjoining any acts or practices which 
constitute, or will constitute, a violation of chapter 18.04 RCW under RCW 
18.04.360. 

(e) Issue an order staying the practice rights or use of the restricted title in situations 
requiring agency action due to an immediate danger to the public health, safety, or 
welfare. The order will initiate an emergency adjudicative proceeding under RCW 
34.05.479. 

(f) Negotiate settlement proposals during investigations of alleged violations of chapter 
18.04 RCW or chapter 4-30 WAC. Such proposals are subject to consulting Board 
member concurrence prior to submission to the Board for consideration. 

(g) Resolve certain violations through a Issue Remedial Resolutions process which may 
result in a voluntary settlement without further review by the Board and execute 
voluntary settlements including monetary terms in accordance with the guidelines 
inwith Board Policy 2004-1. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 41



Delegation of Authority DA-001 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
 This delegation is made under the authority of RCW 18.04.045, 18.04.295, and 
18.04.305. 
 
 DATED this 31st26th day of January 20254. 
 
 
 

      
Tonia L. Campbell, CPAKate Dixon, Public Member 
Chair, Washington State Board of Accountancy 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 42



 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegation of Authority 
 
Number:   DA-002 
 
Title:   Request Oversight and Appeal of Denials  

 
 

 I, Kate DixonTonia L. Campbell, CPA, Chair of the State of Washington Board of 
Accountancy (“Board”), acting under authorization by a Board vote, delegate the following 
authority: 

 
 

1. Request Oversight Committee - To the Executive Director with concurrence of one 
member of the Request Oversight Committee to approve or deny: 
a) Firm Names for compliance with the requirements of RCW 18.04.345 and chapter 

4-30 WAC to ensure the Board that the firm name is not deceptive or misleading. 
b) Professional/Education Organizations Recognition Requests for purposes of 

obtaining lists of individual CPA licensees, CPA-Inactive certificateholders, or 
nonlicensee firm owners under RCW 42.56.070(8) and chapter 4-30 WAC. 

c) Late Fee Waiver Requests where individual hardship including, but not limited to, 
financial hardship, critical illness, or active military deployment is a factor under 
chapter 4-30 WAC. 

d) Domestic or foreign education credential evaluation services applications for 
approval under chapter 4-30 WAC. 

 
2. Appeal of Denials of Requests for Lists of Individuals – To one member of the Request 

Oversight Committee not involved in the original review of the request under delegation 
1(b) of this delegation, to review and uphold or overturn denials of requests for lists of 
individuals under RCW 42.56.520.  This Request Oversight Committee member shall 
complete the review by the end of the second business day following the denial.  The 
Ccommittee member’s decision is the final action the Board will take on the matter for 
purposes of judicial review. 

 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 43



Delegation of Authority DA-002 
Page 2 
 
 

The Request Oversight Committee will report all actions taken under this delegation of authority 
at each quarterly Board meeting to assist the Board in evaluating whether this delegation should 
be rescinded or modified.  
 
 This delegation is made under the authority of RCW 18.04.045 and 42.56.070(8). 
 
 DATED this 31st26th day of January 20254. 
 
 
           

   Tonia L. Campbell, CPAKate Dixon, Public Member 
     Chair, Washington State Board of Accountancy 
 
 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 44



 
 
 
 

Delegation of Authority 
 
Number:  DA-003 
 
Title:  Quality Assurance Oversight  

 
 
 

 I, Kate DixonTonia L. Campbell, CPA, Chair of the State of Washington Board of 
Accountancy (“Board”), acting under authorization by a Board vote, delegate the following 
authority: 
 
1. Quality Assurance Oversight - To the Executive Director, with concurrence of one member 

of the Board’s Peer Review Oversight Committee, to take those actions deemed appropriate 
under chapter 4-30 WAC for any CPA firm: 
 

• That has unresolved matters relating to the peer review process or that has not 
complied with, or acted in disregard of the peer review requirements; and 

• When issues with a peer review may warrant further action. 
 

To implement this delegation, the Executive Director may execute Respondent Agreements, 
including one or any combination of the actions deemed appropriate after concurrence of one 
member of the Board’s Peer Review Oversight Committee.  These actions may include 
requiring the firm/practitioner to: 

 
• Develop and implement quality control procedures to provide reasonable assurance 

that similar occurrences will not occur in the future. 
• Engage a Board-approved licensee to conduct a Board-prescribed on-site field review 

of the firm’s work product and practices to provide a more in-depth review of the 
practitioner’s work, previously taken continuing professional education, library and 
other practice support tools, knowledge, abilities, and system of quality control. 

• Submit all or specified categories of its compilation, audit, review, or other attest 
working papers and reports to a preapproved independent practitioner review prior to 
issuance. 

• Obtain continuing education courses in specific areas.  
 

Uncooperative CPA firms or CPA firms requiring more than one oversight will be 
subject to investigation and appropriate Board action. 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 45



Delegation of Authority DA-003 
Page 2 
 
 

This delegation does not include matters that require Board action such as acceptance of 
voluntary practice restriction. 
 

2. Review of Publicly Available Professional Work – To the Executive Director to review 
publicly available professional work of licensees under RCW 18.04.045(8) and chapter 4-30 
WAC. 

 
The Executive Director will report all actions taken under this delegation of authority at each 
quarterly Board meeting to assist the Board in evaluating whether this delegation should be 
rescinded or modified. 
 
This delegation is made under the authority of RCW 18.04.045. 
 
DATED this 31st26th day of January 20254. 
 
 
          

   Tonia L. Campbell, CPAKate Dixon, Public Member 
   Chair, Washington State Board of Accountancy 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 46



 
 
 
 
 

Delegation of Authority 
 
Number:  DA-004 
 
Title:  CR-101 Filing  

 
 
 

 I, Kate DixonTonia L. Campbell, CPA, Chair of the State of Washington Board of 
Accountancy (“Board”), acting under authorization by a Board vote, delegate to the Executive 
Director the authority to: 

 
File CR-101s with the Office of the Code Reviser to begin the rule-making process for 

revisions of current rules and proposed new rules. 
 
This delegation is made under the authority of RCW 18.04.045 and RCW 18.04.055.  

 
 DATED this 31st26th day of January 20254. 
 
 
           

     Tonia L. Campbell, CPAKate Dixon, Public Member 
      Chair, Washington State Board of Accountancy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 47



 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 48



Qualifications for Licensure  

The Washington State Board of Accountancy is a consumer protection agency that is responsible 
for ensuring individuals are initially qualified, remain qualified, perform competently, and are 
held publicly accountable for the quality of their professional services.  We are the gatekeepers of 
the profession.  The Three Es – Education, Examination, and Experience – continue to be the 
standard qualifications required to become a Certified Public Accountant (CPA), throughout the 
55 licensing jurisdictions.  

There is a shift on the national level for the addition of an alternative pathway for licensure.  This 
includes modifying the reference from 120/150 hours to bachelor/master’s degrees.  The 
alternative pathway would allow for a baccalaureate degree with additional work experience.  
This will provide flexibility to the licensure requirement, while maintaining a standard that aligns 
with the requirements of other state boards. 

The following pathways are based on other state board’s upcoming legislation.  This document 
does not address automatic mobility, which is being handled separately.  My recommendation is 
to closely watch how the licensure requirements unfold and consider those alternative pathways 
that will allow flexibility, while ensuring consumer protection.   

Pathway 1 

1. Education requirement – Baccalaureate degree with an accounting concentration or 
equivalent that meets the education requirement specified in Board Rule. 

2. Examination – Pass the Uniform CPA Examination. 
3. Experience – Two years of experience consisting of a minimum of 24 months and 4,000 

hours, which must be verified by an active CPA licensee who has held their license for a 
minimum of 5 years. 

Pathway 2 

1. Education requirement – Master’s degree, which includes the accounting education 
requirements specified in Board Rule. 

2. Examination – Pass the Uniform CPA Examination. 
3. Experience – One year of experience consisting of a minimum of 12 months and 2,000 

hours, which must be verified by an active CPA licensee who has held their license for a 
minimum of 5 years. 

Pathway 3 (current) 

1. Education requirement – Baccalaureate degree with an accounting concentration or 
equivalent that meets the education requirement specified in Board Rule. 

2. Additional college credits to reach 150 total credit hours.  
3. Examination – Pass the Uniform CPA Examination. 
4. Experience – One year of experience consisting of a minimum of 12 months and 2,000 

hours, which must be verified by an active CPA licensee who has held their license for a 
minimum of 5 years. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 49



 
 
 

Request Oversight Committee Report 
January 2025 

 

 
 
 
Brian Thomas, CPA, Chair  
 
During the fourth quarter 2024, the Acting Director and a Consulting Board Member 
from the Request Oversight Committee took the following action: 
 
Approved Firm Names:  
 

Counting Consultants, Inc 
BLACKWATER OAK, P.S. 
Bilotta & Company, CPAs, LLC.  
Hargrave & Associates, PLLC 
Basin Tax & Accounting PLLC 
Larson Gross Assurance PLLC 

  
Professional/Educational Organization – Recognition Requests  
 
During the fourth quarter in 2024, the Board did not receive any requests for recognition 
as an educational organization or professional association for purposes of obtaining list 
requests. 
 
 
 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 50



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 51



Scholarship Recipient College/University Amount 

Abigail Gates University of Washington $5,000 

AndrewV Ho University of Washington $5,000 

Annika Blumenstein University of Washington $5,000 

Annmarie Wright Gonzaga University $5,000 

Catherine Hagman University of Washington $5,000 

Duy Pham University of Washington - Tacoma $5,000 

Eliza Ann Moloney University of Washington $5,000 

Hannah Rene Bowles Gonzaga University $5,000 

Josephine Zanella Western Washington University $5,000 

Kathleen Vertner Whitworth University $5,000 

Matthew Rinard Gonzaga University $5,000 

Nandia Tungalag Whitworth University $5,000 

Natalie Boad Western Washington University $5,000 

Nick Hoagland Gonzaga University $5,000 

Rachel Catherine Merrill University of Washington $5,000 

Rachel Wang University of Washington $5,000 

Sarah OClock Western Governors University $5,000 

Ulysses Vazquez-Perez University of Washington $5,000 

Jacob Antin Gonzaga University $10,000 

Alianna Ballard Gonzaga University $10,000 

Preston Scott Bentley University of Washington $10,000 

Brandon Blazekovic Eastern Washington University $10,000 

Mira Chang Seattle University $10,000 

Andrew Cheng University of Washington - Tacoma $10,000 

Roh it Chhabra Seattle University $10,000 

Emily Even Gonzaga University $10,000 

Monica Ignatius Fernandes Seattle University $10,000 

Karina Garzon Gonzaga University $10,000 

Anita Guidry Gonzaga University $10,000 

Rachael Jolley University of Washington - Tacoma $10,000 

David Kimathi Kaberia Seattle University $10,000 

Madeline Grace Kling Eastern Washington University $10,000 

Jennifer Martin Stu key Eastern Washington University $10,000 

Aiva Mccargo Gonzaga University $10,000 

Stephanie Marie McLaren Gonzaga University $10,000 

Neha Mittal University of Washington - Tacoma $10,000 

Nurnadia Mohd Rozi Central Washington University $10,000 

Julie Moore Gonzaga University $10,000 

Amanda Marisela Purizaca Flores University of Washington $10,000 

Nhi H San Nicolas University of Washington - Tacoma $10,000 

Benjamin Schotanus University of Washington $10,000 

Isabella Schwalm University of Washington $10,000 

Brannon Yoshi Stimak University of Washington $10,000 

Peony Teeny University of Washington $10,000 

Lucy Tran University of Washington $10,000 

Tien Tran Gonzaga University $10,000 

Amanda Warren Central Washington University $10,000 

Cameron Zundel University of Washington $10,000 

Trang Dang Eastern Washington University $10,000 

$400,000 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 52



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 53



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 54



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 55



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 56



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 57



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 58



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 59



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 60



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 61



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 62



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 63



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 64



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 65



 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 66



 

 
 
 

 
o 
o 

 
o 
o 
o 

o 

 

 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 67



Dec 31, 2024  8:00PM2025 Transactions Through:Biennium: 

Date Run:Report Number: Dec  31, 2024 10:58PMAEF04

Allotment Expenditure/Revenue BTD Flexible

As of Fiscal  Month: Dec FY2

OFM 1650 - State Board of Accountancy

Account: 02J Allotment Content: Approved & Adjusted Estimated Revenue Content: Approved & Adjusted Expenditure Content: Cash, Accr(all)

Revenue Content: Cash, Accr(all)

(For a complete listing of all input parameter values, please see the last page of the report)

BienniumBTDBTDBTDBTDBTD

Allotment AccrualDisbursement Encumbrance Variance Remaining

By Account/Expenditure Authority

02J - Certified Public Accountants' Acct

 3,886,735  3,190,179.94  702.47  0.00  695,852.59 030 - Salaries and Expenses  1,997,117.59 

 695,852.59  0.00  702.47  3,190,179.94  3,886,735 Total for Agency

By Account/Expenditure Authority

 1,997,117.59 

By Object

 1,238,510  1,142,335.21  0.00  0.00  96,174.79 A - Salaries and Wages  514,138.79 

 418,786  378,374.86  0.00  0.00  40,411.14 B - Employee Benefits  178,763.14 

 153,000  159,921.00  0.00  0.00 (6,921.00)C - Professional Service Contracts  44,079.00 

 2,014,529  1,458,025.95  702.47  0.00  555,800.58 E - Goods and Services  1,229,679.58 

 46,610  50,085.66  0.00  0.00 (3,475.66)G - Travel  11,494.34 

 15,300  1,437.26  0.00  0.00  13,862.74 J - Capital Outlays  18,962.74 

 695,852.59  0.00  702.47  3,190,179.94  3,886,735 Total for Agency

By Object

 1,997,117.59 

Page: 1
 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 68



Fund View

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 69



Fund View

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 70



 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Board of Accountancy 
PO BOX 9131 • Olympia WA 98507-9131 

(360) 753-2586 • www.acb.wa.gov 

 

 

December 3, 2024 

 
 

Office of the Code Reviser 

Legislative Building  

PO Box 40551 

Olympia, WA  98504-0551 

 
 

Re: 2025 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE CHANGE 
 

The scheduled July 18, 2025, and October 17, 2025, Board meetings will no longer be held in 

person at a physical location. Those meetings will only be held virtually through Microsoft 

Teams meeting. January 31, 2025, and April 25, 2025, Board meetings will remain as hybrid 

meetings. 

 
 Date  Time  Location  

January 31, 2025, Friday 9:00 a.m.  Radisson Hotel Seattle Airport 

San Juan Rooms 2 & 3 

18118 International Blvd  

Seattle, WA 98188  

or  

Microsoft Teams Meeting 
 

April 25, 2025, Friday 9:00 a.m.  Radisson Hotel Seattle Airport 

San Juan Rooms 2 & 3 

18118 International Blvd  

Seattle, WA 98188 

or 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
July 18, 2025, Friday  9:00 a.m.  Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
October 17, 2025, Friday  9:00 a.m.  Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 71



 
2025 Board Meeting Schedule Change 

December 3, 2024 

Page 2 

The Washington State Board of Accountancy is required to comply with the Public Records Act, Chapter 
42.56 RCW. The information you submit to the Board may be subject to disclosure as a public record. 

 

Microsoft Teams meeting attendance information will be posted on the Board’s website at 

www.acb.wa.gov approximately two weeks prior to the meeting date. The information will be 

available on the homepage under the “Quick Links” section in the “Next Board Meeting” link. 

 

 

 

If you need special assistance, such as enlarged type materials, contact Kirsten Donovan, Board 

Clerk, at: (voice) 360 664-9191; (email) kirsten.donovan@acb.wa.gov; or (TDD) 800 833-6388. 

The Board schedules all in person public meetings at barrier free sites. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

  

 

 

Jennifer Sciba 

Acting Director 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 72



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scan to see another great way 
we’re helping advance 
#GoodGovernment 

Accountability Audit Report 

State Board of Accountancy 
For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2024 

Published January 9, 2025 

Report No. 1036466 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 73



 

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (564) 999-0950  Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov 

 
 

Office of the Washington State Auditor 
Pat McCarthy 

 
January 9, 2025 
 

Jennifer Sciba 
Director 
State Board of Accountancy 
Olympia, Washington 

Report on Accountability 
Thank you for the opportunity to work with you to promote accountability, integrity and openness 
in government. The Office of the Washington State Auditor takes seriously our role of providing 
state and local governments with assurance and accountability as the independent auditor of public 
accounts. In this way, we strive to help government work better, cost less, deliver higher value and 
earn greater public trust. 

Independent audits provide essential accountability and transparency for Board operations. This 
information is valuable to management, the governing body and public stakeholders when 
assessing the government’s stewardship of public resources. 

Attached is our independent audit report on the Board’s compliance with applicable requirements 
and safeguarding of public resources for the areas we examined. We appreciate the opportunity to 
work with your staff and value your cooperation during the audit. 

Sincerely, 

 

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

Americans with Disabilities 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we will make this document available in 
alternative formats. For more information, please contact our Office at (564) 999-0950, TDD 
Relay at (800) 833-6388, or email our webmaster at webmaster@sao.wa.gov. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 74

mailto:webmaster@sao.wa.gov


 

 
 
Office of the Washington State Auditor sao.wa.gov Page 3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Audit Results ................................................................................................................................... 4 

Related Reports ............................................................................................................................... 5 

Information about the Board ........................................................................................................... 6 

About the State Auditor's Office ..................................................................................................... 7 

 

 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 75



 

 
 
Office of the Washington State Auditor sao.wa.gov Page 4 

AUDIT RESULTS 

Results in brief 
This report describes the overall results and conclusions for the areas we examined. In those 
selected areas, Board operations complied, in all material respects, with applicable state laws, 
regulations, and its own policies, and provided adequate controls over the safeguarding of public 
resources. 

In keeping with general auditing practices, we do not examine every transaction, activity, policy, 
internal control, or area. As a result, no information is provided on the areas that were not 
examined. 

About the audit 
This report contains the results of our independent accountability audit of the State Board of 
Accountancy from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2024.  

Management is responsible for ensuring compliance and adequate safeguarding of public resources 
from fraud, loss or abuse. This includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
controls relevant to these objectives. 

This audit was conducted under the authority of RCW 43.09.310, which requires the Office of the 
Washington State Auditor to examine the financial affairs of all state agencies. Our audit involved 
obtaining evidence about the Board’s use of public resources, compliance with state laws and 
regulations and its own policies and procedures, and internal controls over such matters. The 
procedures performed were based on our assessment of risks in the areas we examined. 

Based on our risk assessment for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, 2022 and 2021, the areas 
examined were those representing the highest risk of fraud, loss, abuse, or noncompliance. We 
examined the following areas during this audit period: 

• Accounts receivable – CPA license fees 
• CPE monitoring 
• Payroll – gross pay and leave buyouts 
• Accounts payable – travel expenditures 

 
 

  

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 76



 

Office of the Washington State Auditor sao.wa.gov Page 5 

RELATED REPORTS 

Financial 
We perform an annual audit of the statewide basic financial statements, as required by state law 
(RCW 43.09.310). Our opinion on these financial statements is included in the Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The ACFR reflects the financial activities of all funds, 
organizations, agencies, departments and offices that are part of the state’s reporting entity. The 
results of that audit are published in a report issued by the Office of Financial Management in 
December of each year and can be found at www.ofm.wa.gov. 

Federal programs 
In accordance with the Single Audit Act, we annually audit major federal programs administered 
by the state of Washington. Rather than perform a single audit of each agency, we audit the state 
as a whole. The results of that audit are published in a report issued by the Office of Financial 
Management in March of each year. 

 

 

 

  

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 77

http://www.ofm.wa.gov/


 

Office of the Washington State Auditor sao.wa.gov Page 6 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BOARD 

The Washington State Board of Accountancy licenses and regulates Certified Public Accountants 
(CPAs), CPA firms, Non-licensee CPA firm owners, and the practice of public accountancy in 
Washington State. The Board's mission is to promote the dependability of information which is 
used for guidance in financial transactions or for accounting for or assessing the status or 
performance of commercial and noncommercial enterprises, whether public, private or 
governmental and to protect the public interest. The Board itself is comprised of nine members, 
each appointed by the Governor. Six of the Board Members are Certified Public Accountants 
licensed and practicing in Washington State continuously for the previous 10 years. Three of the 
Board Members are public members who are qualified to judge whether the qualifications, 
activities and professional practice of those regulated by the Board conform to standards to protect 
the public interest. At least one of the public members must represent the interests of clients of 
individuals and firms licensed under the Public Accountancy Act.   

The Agency is led by an Executive Director who is appointed by the Governor and is also a 
licensed CPA. The Executive Director is responsible for Agency operations and investigations as 
well as its eight employees. The Agency is a non-general fund agency and licensing fees are the 
Agency's main source of revenue. The Agency’s 2022-2024 Operating Budget was $7,028,305. 

Contact information related to this report 

Address: 

State Board of Accountancy 
711 Capitol Way S. 
MS 43110 
PO BOX 9131 
Olympia, WA  98507-9131 

Contact: Jennifer Sciba, Acting Director 

Telephone:  (360)586-0952 

Website: https://acb.wa.gov/ 

Information current as of report publish date. 

Audit history 
You can find current and past audit reports for the State Board of Accountancy at 
https://portal.sao.wa.gov//ReportSearch. 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 78

https://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch/?qItemType=1&qItemDesc=Accountancy%20Board&qItemValue=S165


 

Office of the Washington State Auditor sao.wa.gov Page 7 

ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 
The State Auditor’s Office is established in the Washington State Constitution and is part of the 
executive branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the people of Washington 
and serves four-year terms. 

We work with state agencies, local governments and the public to achieve our vision of increasing 
trust in government by helping governments work better and deliver higher value. 

In fulfilling our mission to provide citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how 
state and local governments use public funds, we hold ourselves to those same standards by 
continually improving our audit quality and operational efficiency, and by developing highly 
engaged and committed employees. 

As an agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform 
audits, attestation engagements and investigations. Our work is designed to comply with 
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state and local laws. The 
Office also has an extensive quality control program and undergoes regular external peer review 
to ensure our work meets the highest possible standards of accuracy, objectivity and clarity. 

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with federal, state and local laws for all 
local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher 
education. In addition, we conduct performance audits and cybersecurity audits of state agencies 
and local governments, as well as state whistleblower, fraud and citizen hotline investigations. 

The results of our work are available to everyone through the more than 2,000 reports we publish 
each year on our website, www.sao.wa.gov. Additionally, we share regular news and other 
information via an email subscription service and social media channels. 

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. The Office provides training and technical 
assistance to governments both directly and through partnerships with other governmental support 
organizations. 

 

Stay connected at sao.wa.gov 

• Find your audit team 
• Request public records 
• Search BARS Manuals (GAAP and 

cash), and find reporting templates 
• Learn about our training workshops  

and on-demand videos 
• Discover which governments serve you 

— enter an address on our map 
• Explore public financial data  

with the Financial Intelligence Tool 

Other ways to stay in touch 

• Main telephone:  
(564) 999-0950 

• Toll-free Citizen Hotline:  
(866) 902-3900 

• Email: 
webmaster@sao.wa.gov 

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 79

http://www.sao.wa.gov/
https://sao.wa.gov/about-audits/find-your-audit-team/
https://sao.wa.gov/about-public-records/
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/bars-gaap-manual/
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/bars-cash-manual/
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/bars-reporting-templates/
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/filing-training-and-workshops/
https://sao.wa.gov/improving-government/improvement-training-videos/
https://sao.wa.gov/reports-data/explore-governments-that-serve-you/
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/FIT/
mailto:webmaster@sao.wa.gov


Received in
Previous Period

Received in
Report Period

Total

Complaints Open 17 18 35
Closed with No Action (5) (5) (10)

Closed with Action Taken (10) (1) (11)
Complaints at End of Period 2 12 14

Closed Disposition Administrative Public Harm Total

No Action Taken 0 6 6
Revocation, Suspension, Restriction 0 5 5

Fines, costs, and other sanctions 0 4 4
Remedial Resolution (Policy 2004-1) 1 0 1

Total Closed 1 15 16

Received in
Previous Period

Received in
Report Period

Total

Complaints Open 14 66 80

Closed with No Action (9) (42) (51)

Closed with Action Taken (5) (10) (15)
Complaints at End of Period 0 14 14

Closed Disposition Administrative Public Harm Total
No Action Taken 0 46 46

Revocation, Suspension, Restriction 0 6 6
Fines, costs, and other sanctions 0 4 4

Remedial Resolution (Policy 2004-1) 1 2 3
Total Closed 1 58 59

Details of Complaint Closures

Details of Complaint Closures

Twelve-Month Lookback (Jan 01, 2024 through Dec 31, 2024)

Board of Accountancy
Washington State

Enforcement Report

Quarterly Report (Oct 01, 2024 through Dec 31, 2024)

Complaint Workload

Complaint Workload

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 80



All Action Only All Action Only
Public Harm
Negligence - Attest related 2 1 0 0
Negligence, Disregard of standards 42 8 34 0
Use of Restricted Titles 7 2 6 2
Embezzlement, Theft, Breach of Fid. Duty 4 2 0 0
Breach of Confidentiality 0 0 0 0
Records Retention Causing Harm 1 0 1 0
Subtotal 56 13 41 2

Administrative
Peer Review 1 1 0 0
Subtotal 1 1 0 0
Total 57 14 41 2

BAP Action No Action Total
Rajib Doogar 0 1 2 3

Brooke Stegmeier 0 5 0 5
Cindy Kay 0 0 1 1

Tonia Campbell 0 0 1 1
Kate Dixon 0 0 0 0
Mark Hugh 0 2 0 2

Scott Newman 0 1 0 1
Thomas Sawatzki 0 0 0 0

Brian Thomas 0 0 1 1
None 0 0 5 5
Total 0 9 10 24

Board of Accountancy
Washington State

All complaints - resolved with and without discipline

Jan 2024 to Dec 2024 Jan 2023 to Dec 2023

CBM Report
Oct 01, 2024 through Dec 31, 2024

 
 

January 31, 2025  Page 81


	Meeting Summary  January 31 2025.pdf
	Location:  Radisson Hotel Seattle Airport
	San Juan Rooms 2&3
	18118 International Blvd
	Seattle, WA 98188
	or by Microsoft Teams Meeting
	January 31, 2025 - 9:00 a.m. – PUBLIC RULE-MAKING HEARING
	January 31, 2025 – BOARD MEETING

	Minutes October 18 2024 Unapproved Draft.pdf
	Member

	2024 State Auditor's Report.pdf
	Audit results
	Related Reports
	Information about THE Board
	ABOUT THE STATE Auditor’s Office

	Meeting Summary  January 31 2025.pdf
	Location:  Radisson Hotel Seattle Airport
	San Juan Rooms 2&3
	18118 International Blvd
	Seattle, WA 98188
	or by Microsoft Teams Meeting
	January 31, 2025 - 9:00 a.m. – PUBLIC RULE-MAKING HEARING
	January 31, 2025 – BOARD MEETING




